
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

September 27, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Sep 27 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 27 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Sep 27 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 11 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, West Side Middle School, 101 S. Nappanee St. 

Oct 11 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, West Side Middle School, 101 S. Nappanee St. 

Oct 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, West Side Middle School, 101 S. Nappanee St. 

Oct 25 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 25 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 25 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 25 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
C. MINUTES - 

September 13, 2016 – Public Work Session 
September 13, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
September 20, 2016 – Public Meeting 

 
D. COMMUNICATION UPDATE 

 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Financial Report – January 1, 2016 – August 31, 2016 

 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 



BOARD AGENDA September 27, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

 

 2017 Budget Adoption – The Business Office recommends approval of the 

proposed 2107 Budget, 2017 Capital Projects fund, 2017 Bus Replacement Plan 
and other required budget resolutions. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Common School Fund Loan – The Business Office recommends approval to 
apply for an advance from the Indiana Department of Education Common 
School Fund Loan. 

 
 Partnership Agreement Update – Update on the partnership with Beacon Health 

Systems and the Community Foundation of Elkhart County. 

 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Bristol Public Library Board Appointment 
 

 Elkhart Area Career Center Agreements – The administration recommends 

Board approval of the Elkhart Area Career Center agreements with its feeder 
schools. 
 

 Grant Approval – It is recommended the Board approve submission of grants as 
recommended by the administration. 
 

G. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

September 13, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Karen S. Carter Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
Absent: Glenn L. Duncan  
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Rob Haworth 
 Shawn Hannon Kevin Scott 
 Doug Hasler Doug Thorne 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board discussed arrangements for the ISBA conference; vacation of 

McPherson Street and agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:35 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 

MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

September 13, 2016 
 
 

J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 
7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 

Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  

August 19, 2016 – Board Retreat/Work Session 
August 23, 2016 – Public Work Session 
August 23, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 

August 26, 2016 – Public Meeting 
August 26, 2016 – Board Retreat/Work Session 
 

Approval of 

Minutes 

Shawn Hannon, assistant superintendent of communication and data, 
presented a communication update.  The report included recent media 
coverage; upcoming stories including Move2Stand; and upcoming 

events including a Food Service Showcase on Saturday, October 1st at 
North Side Middle School. 
 

Communication 
Update 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$10,255,142.61 as shown on the September 13, 2016, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1617-31) 

 

Payment of 
Claims  

  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donation made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  twenty-six $30 

gift certificates from Dr. David Fairchild for distribution to each Mary 
Daly teacher to help with classroom supplies; 20 cases of bottled water 
from Chris and Shelly Rody to help with Mary Daly’s drinking fountain 

issue; $900.00 from Cent-$sational Events to Memorial High School’s 
(MHS) math department for supplies; $1,500.00 from NIVA to Pierre 
Moran for their athletic equipment extra-curricular account; $250.00 

worth of supplies for Roosevelt’s El Sistema music program from Lowe’s; 
750 backpacks filled with school supplies and two boxes of 
miscellaneous schools supplies from the WNDU Pack-a-Backpack drive, 

and 75 backpacks filled with school supplies from Natasha Fisel and 
family in memory of Natasha’s husband and the children’s father for 
distribution to children in need by school social workers.  

 

Gift Acceptance 

A public hearing was held on the proposed 2017 Budget, Capital Projects 
and Bus Replacement Plans, with no comments from the audience, the 

hearing was closed. 
 

Public Hearing 
 

Kevin Scott, chief financial officer, presented the budget resolution 

documents for initial consideration. 

Budget 

Resolutions 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 
of chamber choir uniforms for Memorial High School in the amount of 
$501.12 to replace heavily worn men’s uniforms. 

 

Extra Curricular 
Purchase 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1617-32) 
 

Fundraiser 
Approval 

Doug Hasler, chief operating officer, reported the lease agreement 
regarding the future aquatic center with Beacon Health Systems and the 
Community Foundation of Elkhart County is still being reviewed. 

 

Partnership 
Updates 
 

The Board was presented with the NEOLA Adoption Resolution for initial 
consideration.  In response to Board inquiries, suggested revisions from 

the Board are being accepted. 
 

NEOLA 
Adoption 

Resolution 

By unanimous action, the Board approved new course offerings in 

accordance with Board policy.  New courses include: Art Reach Mural 
Painting; Middle School Business; and Vocal Jazz. 
 

New Course 

Offerings 

By unanimous action, the Board approved overnight trip requests for 
Osolo 5th graders to travel to Camp Eberhart in Three Rivers, MI on 
November 3 and 4 to develop leadership and communication skills; and 

North Side 8th graders to travel to Gettysburg, PA and Washington, DC 
on June 4 thru 9, 2017. 

Overnight Trip 
Requests 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved alternative residential 
services agreements for two ECS special education students.  (Codified 

Files 1617-33 and 1617-34) 

Residential 
Services 

Agreements 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the September 13, 2016 listings. (Codified File 1617-
35) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 
Report 

An agreement regarding unpaid time for a certified staff member. 

(Codified Files 1617-36) 
 

Consent 

Agreement 

Employment of the following five (5) certified staff members for 

the 2016-2017 school year, effective on dates indicated:  
Sarah Hoover - grade 2 at Roosevelt, 9/12/16 

Terri Huffman - grade 6 at Daly, 9/12/16 
Angela Miller - kindergarten at Osolo, 9/9/16 
Jason Miller - behavior support at Pinewood/Osolo, 9/22/16 

Alise Thompson - intervention at Roosevelt, 9/12/16 
 

Certified 

Employment 
 

Resignation of the following three (3) certified staff members 

effective on dates indicated: 
Carrie Amezquita - grade 1 at Feeser, 9/9/16 
Melissa Morey - grade 5 at Roosevelt, 9/2/16 

Amber Revior - grade 5 at Roosevelt, 9/9/16 
 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Maternity leave for the following three (3) certified staff 

members: 
Alyssa Lanting - special education at Monger, beginning 

9/12/16 and ending 4/28/17 

Kendra Weirich - kindergarten at Daly, beginning 8/31/16 
and ending 10/21/16 

Daleanne Woods - grade 5 at Feeser, beginning 9/30/16 

and ending 11/11/16 
 

Certified Leave 

Resignation of the following seven (7) classified employees effective 

on dates indicated:  
Elishia Cook - nurse at Pierre Moran, 9/20/16 
Edith Fernandez - custodian at Memorial, 9/16/16 

Terri Lee Huffman - paraprofessional at North Side, 9/9/16 
Inge Mraz - paraprofessional at Monger, 9/2/16 
Jennifer Outlaw - paraprofessional at Woodland, 9/1/16 

Suzanne Ragsdale - paraprofessional at Monger, 9/9/16 
Aretha Woolwine - bus driver at Transportation, 9/17/16 
 

Classified 

Resignations 
 

  



4 
 

Regular employment of the following four (4) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Jennifer Allen - paraprofessional at Beardsley, 8/29/16 
Denise Finn - bus driver at Transportation, 8/30/16 

Dwight Gosser - bus driver at Transportation, 8/24/16 
Jennifer Perrin - route driver coordinator at Transportation, 

9/8/16 

 

Classified  
Employment 

Termination of classified employee Jacqueline Crimi, food service 
at Memorial, in accordance with Board Policy GDBA-1, Section 3. 

 

Classified 
Termination 

 
Unpaid leave for classified employee Leanna Turco, bus driver at 
Transportation, beginning 8/4/16 through 5/26/17. 

Classified 
Leave 

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved the reconfiguration of the grade 
spans of Cleveland, Mary Daly, Eastwood, Pinewood and Riverview to 

Pre-K through grade 6, to allow reporting of students who participated in 
the Transition to K summer school program to the IDOE as presented by 
Superintendent Haworth. 

 

From the 
Superintendent 

The Board heard an audience member speak regarding the strategic 

planning process; focusing on enhancing quality of life and maintaining 
quality schools.  The Board thanked him for his presentation. 
 

From the 

Audience 

  



5 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
  ____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
 

September 20, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 7:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Karen S. Carter Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent: Glenn L. Duncan Douglas Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Rob Haworth  
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board met to continue discussions regarding the strategic planning for 

Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:25 a.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 

 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  September 15, 2016 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM:  Cyndy Keeling, Agriculture Education Coordinator 

 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 

We are in receipt of a co-curricular donation in the amount of $500.00 for the EACC FFA Chapter.  This 

donation will go towards FFA jackets and other contest material associated with the program. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to:  

 

 

Elkhart County Farm Bureau 

Bert Egging 

215 West Lincoln Avenue 
Goshen, IN 46526 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DATE:  August, 29, 2016 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM:  Kevin Dean 
  Kaleigh Swinehart 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
 
We were gifted eight Lenovo Chromebooks by Donors Choose. By having Chromebooks in our 

classroom, the students will be able to invest in learning that will expand their thinking and 

ability to contribute to the real world. 

We will be learning how to code, connect with other learners in different parts of the world, 

work across grade levels with other students, spend the majority of our learning problem-

solving, and working in collaborative groups. 

In addition, we will become College and Career Ready by using a Learning Management System 

within the classroom and at home. The Chromebooks will allow us to use them as resource and 

presentation tools for Project Based Learning and learning in the 21st Century. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 DonorsChoose.org, 134 West 37 Street, 11 Floor, New York, NY 10018 

 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DATE:  September 16, 2016 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $500.00 for the 
girls/boys Cross Country team.  This donation will go towards miscellaneous costs 
associated with this program. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this 
donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is 
sent to: 
 
Passionately Purple 
The Sarah Crane Foundation 
ATTN:  Sherry Auker 
54921 David Dr.  
Elkhart, IN. 46514 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  September 21, 2016 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM: Kristie Stutsman 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
 
West Side Middle School would like to thank Northern Indiana Volleyball Association 
(NIVA) for their donation of $2,000.00 to the West Side volleyball and athletic programs. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and 
that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 
 Northern Indiana Volleyball Association 
 Adria Anderson / Jacquie Rost 
 
 







ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 

RESOLUTION TO REDUCE PROPOSED BUDGET 
 

(Reduces total budget estimate, Budget Form 4B, Line 1 – 2017) 
(Reduces necessary expenditures, Jul 1-Dec 31, Budget Form 4B, Line 2 – 2016 

(Reduces Operating Balance, Budget Form 4B, Line 11) 
(Reduces Net Amount to be Raised, Budget Form 4B, Line 16) 

(Reduces Net Tax Rate, Budget Form 4B, Line 17) 
 

 WHEREAS, it may be necessary to make reductions in certain existing 
appropriations, and reductions in the proposed budget estimate, operating 
balance, net amount to be raised, and/or net tax rates, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the exact amount of such reductions will be determined through 
the budget approval process conducted by the Indiana Department of Local 
Government Finance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

(1) The Treasurer is authorized to reduce Budget Form 4B, Lines 1, 2, 
11, 16, and 17 in the amounts determined to be necessary 
through the DLGF budget approval process. 
 

(2) Said reductions are understood to modify figures and amounts 
referenced in other budget documents, including Budget Form 3 
(Notice to Taxpayers), and Budget Form 4 (Resolution for 
Appropriations and Tax Rates). 

 
(3) The Treasurer is directed to report on the amount of reduction(s) 

at a regular meeting of the Board of School Trustees. 
  



ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016: 
 
 
  AYE       NAY 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 
 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 
 Secretary, Board of School Trustees 



 RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE YEAR 2017 

 BUS REPLACEMENT PLAN 

 (20-2305) 

 

 This resolution is adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart, Elkhart County, Indiana: 

 

 Whereas a School Bus Replacement Plan has been established; and 

 

 Whereas the Board of School Trustees is required under I.C. 20-46-5 to adopt a plan with 

respect to the School Bus Replacement; and 

 

 Whereas the Board of School Trustees held a public hearing on the plan on the 13
th

 day of 

September, 2016, at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana; 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of School Trustees that the plan entitled  

School Bus Replacement Plan for the years 2017 through 2028, is hereby incorporated by reference 

into this resolution, and is adopted as the Board of School Trustees’ plan with respect to the School 

Bus Replacement Plan. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of School Trustees shall submit a certified 

copy of this resolution (including the adopted plan and the Calculation Worksheet) to the 

Department of Local Government as required by I.C. 20-40-7 for approval. 

 

 

ADOPTED THIS 27
th 

DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2016. 

 

   

           AYE           NAY 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

 

  BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES, ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________________, Secretary 

      Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools resolutnsbr 



 RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A PLAN 

 FOR A CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

 (20-2305) 

 

 This resolution is adopted by the Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart, Elkhart County, Indiana: 

 

 WHEREAS, A School Capital Projects Fund has been established; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is required under I.C. 20-46-6-5 to adopt a plan with 

respect to the Capital Projects Fund; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees held a public hearing on the capital projects plan on 

September 13, 2016, at 2720 California Road. 

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees that the plan for Elkhart 

Community Schools for the years 2017 through 2021 is hereby incorporated by reference into this 

resolution, and is adopted as the Board of Trustees’ plan with respect to the School Capital Projects 

Fund. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees shall submit a certified copy of 

this resolution (including the adopted plan) to the Department of Local Government Finance as 

required by I.C. 20-40-8-8 for approval. 

 

 

ADOPTED THIS 27
th

 DAY OF September 2016. 

 

             AYE           NAY 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

________________________________  ________________________________ 

    

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES, ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________________, Secretary 

      Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools resolutioncpf 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

Elkhart, Indiana  

 
TAX NEUTRALITY RESOLUTION 

 

 

WHEREAS, the School Pension Debt Service Fund has been established for 

the purpose of budgeting principal and interest payments on pension bond debt 

authorized under Indiana Code 20-48-1-2,  

WHEREAS, Elkhart Community Schools issued debt pursuant to Indiana 

Code 20-48-1-2 in June 2006; 

 WHEREAS, Indiana Code 20-48-1-2 provides that a School Corporation shall 

reduce the total property tax levy for its transportation, school bus replacement, 

and/or capital projects funds in an amount equal to the debt service levy approved 

for the School Pension Debt Service Fund; 

 WHEREAS, the Indiana Department of Local Finance will determine the 

total property tax levy reduction amount necessary for the 2017 budget over the 

course of its budget review process;   

WHEREAS, the decision on which fund(s) to designate for reduction in the 

2017 property tax levy would be best made when DLGF has prepared preliminary 

tax rates for all such funds. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SCHOOL 

TRUSTEES OF ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS that the Chief Financial 

Officer is authorized to allocate the tax neutrality reductions required under Indiana 

law across the Capital Projects Fund, the Transportation Operating Find and the 

Bus Replacement Fund, with such amounts to be reported to the Board of School 

Trustees after they have been approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Adopted this 27th day of September, 2016. 

 

 

              AYE              NAY 
 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 

__________________________________ _________________________________ 

 
       
 
ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Secretary, Board of School Trustees       Tax Neutrality Resolution 
 







 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Haworth 

  Board of school trustees 

   

From: Douglas A. hasler 

 
Date:  September 22, 2016  

 

Subject/  common school fund loan applicaton 

The Indiana Department of Education makes available low interest loans for technology projects through 

the Common School Fund.  This is similar to the School Technology Advancement Account (STAA) loan that 

Elkhart Schools applied for in July of this year.  Loan amounts through the Common School Fund are 

substantially greater than STAA loans.  I am estimating that ECS would qualify for a loan of approximately 

$1.2 million. 

As we are moving forward to implement one-to-one technology in our secondary schools, Common School 

Fund loans represent our best opportunity to finance the purchase of Chromebooks and related 

technology.  The IDOE window for submitting applications for educational technology loans through the 

Common School Fund closes on October 7, 2016.  I am in the process of finalizing the application for this 

loan (copy of blank loan application attached).  I will be recommending your authorization to complete and 

submit an application for this Common School Fund loan in the September 27th Board meeting. 

Please contact me if you have any questions concerning this matter prior to Tuesday night. 













Elkhart Area Career Center Agreement 

 

 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this   1st  day of   August  , 2016, by and 

between the Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, and  Goshen 

Community Schools. 

 

WHEREAS, Elkhart Community Schools has constructed a building to provide 

occupational training for those individuals residing within the school corporation/districts 

who are desirous and in need of such training, said Center being known as the Elkhart 

Area Career Center and 

 

 WHEREAS, Goshen Community Schools is desirous as a school corporation/district 

to participate in their students attending said Career Center, 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 

hereinafter set forth, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

 

 ARTICLE I. STUDENTS AUTHORIZED TO ATTEND THE CAREER CENTER 

 

 Students from participating school corporations/districts may attend the Career 

Center on a full or partial day basis at the discretion of their own participating school 

corporation/district, and all credits toward graduation will be issued by the said home 

corporation/district. 

 Each student attending the Career Center shall be considered a student of the 

participating school corporation/district for the purposes of calculating the average daily 

attendance for the participating school corporation/district, including private, charter, and 

home schools. 

 

 

 



 

Career Center Agreement – page 2 

 

 

 ARTICLE II. ADMINISTRATIVE CONTROL 

 

 The Elkhart Area Career Center shall be under the administrative control of the 

Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools, Elkhart, Indiana, and said Board 

shall have authority and responsibility to determine all final decisions concerning the 

financing and the operation of the Center. 

 

ARTICLE III. LOCAL ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR CAREER AND TECHNICAL 

EDUCATION (CTE) 

 

 A local Career and Technical Education (CTE) advisory council for career and 

technical education shall be approved by the Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana, representing broad interests in career and technical 

education, on an interest basis.   The functions of this council shall be to provide 

recommendations for the operation of the Career Center and to bring these 

recommendations to the administration of the Career Center and the Board of School 

Trustees, Elkhart Community Schools.  This advisory council, as nearly as possible, should 

represent the interests of all of the people within the area served by the Elkhart Area 

Career Center. 

 This advisory council will meet a minimum of two times each year, and the minutes 

of those meetings shall be emailed to all participating school corporations/districts and shall 

be available at the Elkhart Area Career Center at all times. 

 

 ARTICLE IV.  TRANSPORTATION OF STUDENTS 

 

 Decisions regarding transportation of students to the Career Center shall be left to 

the discretion of the local Boards.  No transportation of students to and from the Center 

will be provided by the Career Center. 

 



Career Center Agreement – page 3 

 

 ARTICLE V.  BUDGET AND ACCOUNTING 

  

The annual budget for the operation of the Career Center shall be prepared in 

accordance with the policies of the Indiana State Board of Accounts and the Superintendent 

of Public Instruction.  Said budget will be developed on a total project basis and shall first 

be subject to the final approval by the Board of School Trustees, Elkhart Community 

Schools, Elkhart County, Indiana.  Elkhart Community Schools shall maintain a separate 

Vocational Fund in the Fund Ledger and Ledger of Receipts, and shall observe all other 

accounting procedures required by the Indiana State Board of Accounts. 

 The Elkhart Community Schools, serving as the administering school, is entitled to 

recover costs incurred for administering the Elkhart Area Career Center program by 

multiplying their approved federal fund indirect cost rate times the Elkhart Area Career 

Center fiscal year current expenditures and prorating the costs in accordance with the 

provisions of ARTICLE IV, as a part of the total cost per pupil enrolled. 

 A copy of the projected budget shall be submitted to the participating school 

corporations/districts no later than February 1, for the following school year.  At the end of 

the fiscal year, an expenditure of funds report will be submitted to each school 

corporation/district. 

 

 ARTICLE VI.  COST TO PARTICIPATING SCHOOL CORPORATION/DISTRICT 

  

The cost to a participating school corporation/district shall be determined in the 

following manner:  Each participating school corporation/district will pay the net per capita 

cost for each of its students enrolled in the Career Center program.  Said net per capita cost 

shall be determined on the basis of the following formula: 

 

  Total operating cost of program 

  Less state and federal reimbursement 

 = Net cost per student enrollment in the Career Center  

 

 



 

Career Center Agreement – page 4 

 

 Utilizing this formula, the participating school corporation/district shall be billed on 

a monthly basis on the estimated cost per student.  The final billing shall be resolved after 

the reimbursement is made in July and will be based on the actual net cost per capita for 

the students enrolled. 

 Any specific fees, such as book rental or student supplies shall be the responsibility 

of the student. 

  

ARTICLE VII.  STUDENTS TO BE ENROLLED 

  

The following enrollment procedures will be used: 

 The Guidance Department of the Career Center will provide each participating 

school corporation/district with a list of CTE programs to be offered during the new school 

year on or before January 10 of each year. 

 Applications for enrollment will be supplied to the participating school 

corporations/districts on or before February 20 and the enrollment process initiated. 

 On or before March 31, the participating school corporation/district shall have 

completed the enrollment forms and returned them to the Guidance Department of the 

Elkhart Area Career Center. 

 On or before April 5, the Career Center counseling staff shall tabulate the number of 

applications and initiate the normal balancing procedure working with cooperating school 

counselors to insure reasonable and cost effective class enrollment numbers.  It is 

understood that some variation in enrollment will take place between this spring balancing 

and the ADM final count; however, cooperating school agrees to have done the major 

portion of their screening by May 10 and only minor adjustments should occur from this 

point to the official ADM day. 

 On or before the official ADM count day for the school year of this Agreement, the 

participating school corporation/district does herewith enter into as a part of this contract 

to provide for the financial costs incurred for those student enrollees whose placement shall 

be determined in accordance with the procedures herewith defined for the succeeding school 

year. 



  

Career Center Agreement – Page 5 

 

 ARTICLE VIII.   EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL 

 

 All personnel employed at the Elkhart Area Career Center shall be the 

responsibility of the Elkhart Community Schools, in accordance with licensing procedures 

of the State of Indiana. 

 

 ARTICLE IX.    PERIOD OF AGREEMENT 

  

 This agreement shall begin on the 1st day of August, and shall continue on a fiscal 

year, July 1 to June 30.  A new contract will be written on or before August 1 of the fiscal 

year. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have signed this Agreement and caused 

their seals to be affixed and attested on the day and year indicated. 

 

      ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS       Goshen Community Schools            

 

 By _____________________________________  By ____________________________________ 
                            President of the Board                           President of the Board 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________________     ______________________________________ 
                        Superintendent of Schools                         Superintendent of Schools 

 

 

Attested: Attested: 

 

_________________________________________   _______________________________________ 
                            Secretary of the Board                          Secretary of the Board 

 

 

Date:  ___________________________________ Date:  ________________________________ 



















 
INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 
To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 
From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 
Date:  September 27, 2016 
 

Personnel Recommendations 
 
CERTIFIED 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of an agreement regarding a partial professional leave 
effective October 1, 2016. 
 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 2016-
17 school year: 

Melissa Butner   Beck/Music 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employee: 

Jessica Moreno  Monger/Grade 6 
Begin:  10/24/16  End:  11/11/16 

 

CLASSIFIED 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 
 
Janice Borgman  Osolo/Food Service  
Began: 11/24/14  Resign: 9/6/16 
 
Kimberly Buckley  Cleveland/Food Service 
Began: 1/10/11   Resign: 9/16/16 
   
Toby Carter   Tech Services/Tech Support Tech I 
Began: 1/2/13   Resign: 9/13/16 
 
Heidy Cruz   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 
Began: 9/21/15   Resign: 9/16/16 
 
Amanda Goodknight  Cleveland/Paraprofessional 
Began: 8/25/15   Resign: 10/3/16 
 
Rodney Herron  Commissary/Misc Food Svc Truck Driver 
Began: 3/17/14   Resign: 9/23/16 
 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Karen Nees   Transportation/ Bus Helper 
Began: 1/4/16   Resign: 9/23/16 
 
Tyresha Peoples  Tipton/Central/Food Service 
Began: 3/8/16   Resign: 9/8/16 
 
Lisa Rose   Beck/Paraprofessional 
Began: 8/14/16   Resign: 9/16/16 

   Coriene Woods  Monger/Paraprofessional 
   Began: 12/16/13  Resign: 9/13/16 
 
 

b. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees:  
 
Jessica Ake   Transportation/Bus Driver Unassigned 
Began: 5/24/16   PE: 9/19/16 
 
Stacey Borst   Daly/Secretary 
Began: 8/1/16   PE: 9/26/16 
 
Jane Cooper   Pierre Moran/Food Service  
Began: 8/1/16   PE: 9/26/16 
 
Jerry Fuller   Transportation/Bus Driver Unassigned 
Began: 5/24/16   PE: 9/19/16 
 
Belinda Hines   West Side/Food Service 
Began: 8/1/16   PE: 9/26/16 
 
Casey Lott   Beck/Paraprofessional 
Began: 8/2/16   PE: 9/27/16 
 
Collin Rowland  Transportation/Bus Driver Unassigned 
Began: 5/24/16   PE: 9/19/16 
 
Eric Schrock   Daly/Feeser/Social Worker  
Began: 8/1/16   PE: 9/26/16 
 
Kristin Thalheimer  Memorial/Food Service 
Began: 8/2/16   PE: 9/27/16 
 
LeAnn Thompson  Riverview/Paraprofessional 
Began: 8/2/16   PE: 9/27/16 
 
Morgan Winters  North Side/Food Service 
Began: 8/1/16   PE:  9/26/16 
 
Bethany Zartman  Eastwood/Secretary 
Began: 7/21/16   PE: 9/15/16 
 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

c. Termination – We recommend termination of the following classified employee: 
 

Garrett Paulson  Building Services/ Custodian 
Began: 3/22/16   Term:   9/27/16 
    Board Policy:  GDPD c, f, g 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert haworth 

From:  W. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  September 27, 2016 

 

 

Addendum to Personnel Report 

 

Certified 

 

a. Professional Leave – We recommend  a partial professional leave for the following employee: 

 

Shawn Hannon Assistant Superintendent of Communication & Data 

Begin:  10/3/16  End:  6/30/18 

 

 

 

Classified 
 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective September 28, 2016: 

 

Gary Sawtelle  Director of Technology 

 

 

b. Correction to New Hire – We recommend regular employment for the following classified 

employee: 

 

Erin Shrock  Daly~Feeser/Social Worker 

Began:  8/1/16  PE:  9/26/16 

 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session September 13 2016
	Minutes - Regular Meeting September 13 2016
	Minutes - Work Session September 20 2016
	Account Balances - August
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - Feeser
	Gift Acceptance - Food Service
	Gift Acceptance - Instructional Leadership
	Gift Acceptance - Memorial
	Gift Acceptance - Osolo
	Gift Acceptance - West Side
	Budget Form 4
	Budget Reduction Resolution (2017)
	Resolution to Adopt Bus Repalcement
	Resolution to Adopt CPF
	Tax Neutrality Resolution
	Fundraisers
	Common School Fund Memo
	Comm School Fund Application
	Bristol Library - Trustee Application
	EACC Agreement 2016
	Request for Grant Submissions
	Conference Leaves
	Personnel Report
	Personnel Report Addendum

